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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before Tax (1,639.14) 1,392.73

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation & Amortisation 3,384.65 3,178.05

Finance Costs 2,586.57 2,198.07

Interest Income (290.52)  (320.69)

Dividend Income  (225.00)  (1,059.06)

Provision for Leave Salary 23.62 75.67

Rent Receipts from Investment Properties  (0.68)  (0.68)

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Assets  (12.21) 19.55

Provision for mark to market loss on cotton inventory value 218.34 –

Fair Value movement and Financial Guarantee obligation  (91.07) 2.24

Operating Profit before Working capital Changes 3,954.56 5,485.88
Movements in Working Capital

Trade Receivables 1,146.23  (1,162.67)
Loans and Advances  (130.60)  (174.42)
Unutilised Tax Credit - Indirect Tax  (353.61)  (1,017.80)
Inventories 3.20  (3,405.87)
Trade Payables & Current Liabilities  (366.01) 2,559.89

Cash generated from Operations 4,253.77 2,285.01
Direct Taxes (Paid) / refund received 72.96  (136.47)

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities A 4,326.73 2,148.54

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (Including Capital work-in-
progress and Capital Advance)  (17,192.86)  (21,629.16)

Government Grants received - related to acquisition of
fixed assets 986.69 –

Investment in Equity Shares of Associates –  (2,093.38)

(Acquisition) of / Proceeds from Sale of Investment in
Equity Shares - Others  (0.77) 0.66

Proceeds from Sale of Assets / Investment Property 545.58 390.60

Interest Received  290.52 320.69

Dividend Received 2,127.59 2,085.81

Rent Receipts from Investment Properties 0.68 0.68

Net Cash used in Investing Activities B  (13,242.57)  (20,924.10)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 17,290.16 20,934.19

Proceeds from / (Repayment) of Deposits - Related Parties  (360.58) 2,597.68

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (4,803.43)  (4,049.83)

Availment of Short Term Borrowings (Net) 3.14 2,024.83

Payment of Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax  (355.70)  (355.70)

Interest Paid  (2,586.57)  (2,198.07)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities C   9,187.02 18,953.10)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent D = (A+B+C) 271.18 177.54

Opening balance of  Cash and Cash Equivalents E 368.30 190.76

Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents D + E 639.48 368.30

Notes:

(i) The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in

the Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flow.

(ii) Bank Borrowings including Cash Credits are considered as Financing Activities.

(iii) For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise the following:

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents [Refer to Note No.17] 109.55 153.62

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents [Refer to Note No. 18] 529.93 214.68

639.48 368.30

See accompanying notes to the financial statements [Refer to Note No. 7 to 53]

As per our report annexed

For N.A. JAYARAMAN & CO. For SRSV & ASSOCIATES Shri P.R. VENKETRAMA RAJA Smt. R. SUDARSANAM
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 001310S Firm Registration No. 015041S

R. PALANIAPPAN P. SANTHANAM B. GNANAGURUSAMY A. ARULPRANAVAM
Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Secretary
Membership No. 205112 Membership No. 018697

Chennai,
24th June, 2020.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Rajapalayam Mills Limited is a Public Limited Company domiciled and headquartered in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913. The Registered office
of the Company is located at Rajapalayam Mills Premises, P.A.C. Ramasamy Raja Salai,
Rajapalayam - 626 117, Tamil Nadu. The Company's shares are listed in BSE Limited.

The Company is principally engaged in manufacture of cotton yarn and fabrics. The Company
is also engaged in generation of electricity from its windmills for its captive requirements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31-03-2020 were
approved and adopted by Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated 24-06-2020.

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(i) The CFS are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended from time to time.

(ii) The significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements are set out
in Note No.5.

(iii) The Company has considered its operating cycle to be 12 months for the purpose of
Current and Non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(iv) An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold
or consumed in the normal operating cycle or held primarily for the purpose of trading or
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period or cash or cash equivalents
unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 12 months after the
reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

(v) A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
or held primarily for the purpose of trading or due for settlement within 12 months after the
reporting period or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as
non-current.

(vi) The CFS are presented in Indian Rupees rounded to the nearest Lakhs with two decimals.
The amount below the round off norm adopted by the Company is denoted as
$ 0.00 Lakhs.

(vii) Pursuant to General Circular No.39/2014 dated 14-10-2014 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs that the disclosures made already under the separate financial statements
are not merely repeated and thus the disclosures that are relevant arising out of consolidation
have only been presented.

(viii) The CFS comprises the financial statements of Rajapalayam Mills Limited and its Associate
Companies. The following companies are considered as Associates based on existence of
significant influence over such companies:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name of the Company
% of Holding & Voting Rights

2019-20 2018-19

The Ramco Cements Limited 14.04% 14.04%

Ramco Industries Limited 9.69% 9.69%

Ramco Systems Limited 2.40% 2.40%

(ix) Previous year figures have been regrouped / restated, wherever necessary and appropriate.

3. Principles of Consolidation

a) The CFS includes the share of profit / loss of the associate companies that are accounted

for using equity method in accordance with Ind AS 28. Accordingly, the share of profit / loss

of the associates (the loss being restricted to the cost of investment) has been added /

deducted from the cost of investment. The most recent available financial statements of the

associates are used in applying the equity method.

b) The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the share of results of its associates.

Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Consolidated OCI.

c) Under equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at the fair value

of net asset of Associate Companies from the date on which it becomes an associate and

any difference between the cost of the investment and the Parent's share of the net fair

value of the investee's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as follows:

(i) Any excess of the entity's share of the net fair value of the investee's identifiable

assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment is recognised directly in equity

as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.

(ii) Subsequently, the carrying amount of investment is adjusted to recognize the

share of post-acquisition profits or losses of its Associates in the Parent's Statement

of Profit & Loss.

(iii) The equity method shall be discontinued from the date when the investment

ceases to be an Associate and it shall measure the retained interest shall be

measured at fair value.  The fair value of the retained interest shall be regarded

as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset.  The difference between

the fair value of retained interest & any proceeds from disposing of a part interest

in the Associate and the carrying amount of investment at the date the equity

method was discontinued will be recognized in profit or loss.

d) Dividend received or receivable from Associates are recognized as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the Investment.
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e) Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Company's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
to the extent of the Company's interest in these entities unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

f) At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company
provides for impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as 'Share of profit of an associates' in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

g) The CFS has been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances and is presented, to the extent possible, in the same
manner as the Company's separate financial statements.

4. Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under historical
cost convention except for certain financial instruments (Refer to Note No.5(S) - Accounting
Policy for Financial Instruments) and defined benefit plan assets which are measured at fair
value.

5. Significant Accounting Policies

A. Inventories

(i) Raw-materials, Stores & Spares, Fuel, Packing materials etc., are valued at cost, computed
on a moving weighted average basis including the cost incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition after providing for obsolescence and other losses
or net realisable value whichever is lower. Inventories are usually written down to net
realisable value, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be
sold below cost. However, the inventories are considered to be realizable at cost, if the
finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost.

(ii) Process stock is valued at weighted average cost including the cost of conversion with
systematic allocation of production overheads based on normal capacity of production
facilities but excluding borrowing cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Factory
administration overheads to the extent attributable to bring the inventories to their present
location and condition are also included in the valuation of Process stock.

(iii) Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost includes
cost of conversion with systematic allocation of production overheads based on normal
capacity of production facilities and other costs but excluding borrowing cost incurred in
bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. Finished goods include
stock-in-trade also which comprises cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing
the inventories to the present location and condition. Cost is determined on a moving
weighted average basis.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

B. Cash Flow Statement

(i) Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments.

(ii) Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

(iii) Bank borrowings, including Bank overdrafts and Cash Credits are generally considered
to be financing activities.

C. Dividend distribution to Equity shareholders

Final dividend distribution to Shareholders is recognised in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by
Board of Directors. Dividend together with applicable taxes are recognised directly in Equity.

D. Income Taxes

(i) Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined
in accordance with the applicable tax rates, the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
and other applicable tax laws including the relevant transfer pricing regulations prescribed
thereunder, read with applicable judicial precedents or interpretations, wherever relevant.

(ii) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future tax liability, is recognised as an
asset viz. MAT Credit Entitlement, to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal Income tax and it is highly probable that future economic
benefits associated with it will flow to the Company during the specified period. The
Company reviews the "MAT Credit Entitlement" at each Balance Sheet date and writes
down the carrying amount of the same to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence
to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified period. The
MAT Credit Entitlement being unused tax credits that are carried forward by the Company
for a specified period, is grouped under Deferred Tax.

(iii) Current tax assets and liabilities are offset, when the Company has legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and intends to settle the asset and the liability on
a net basis.

(iv) Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(v) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year where the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

(vi) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied
by same governing tax laws and the Company has legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

(vii) Both current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Profit or Loss
is recognised either in "Other Comprehensive Income" or directly in "Equity" as the case
may be.

E. Property, Plant and Equipments (PPE)

(i) PPEs are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses if any, except freehold land which is carried at cost.
The cost comprises of purchase price, import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes (net
of tax credits wherever applicable), borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
The directly attributable costs include cost of testing whether the asset is functioning
properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing
the asset to that location and condition.

(ii) Government grants related to assets have been deducted in arriving at the carrying
amount of the respective assets.

(iii) Subsequent expenditures are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(iv) Spares which meet the definition of PPE are capitalised from the date when it is available
for use. Other expenses on fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts that does not meet the capitalisation criteria are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

(v) The Company identifies the significant parts of plant and equipment separately which are
required to be replaced at intervals. Such parts are depreciated separately based on their
specific useful lives. The cost of replacement of significant parts are capitalised and the
carrying amount of replaced parts are de-recognised. The cost of major of inspection/
overhauling is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of PPE as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection / overhauling (as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised.

(vi) The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of PPE after its use,
if materially significant, is included in the cost of the respective asset when the recognition
criteria are met.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(vii) Capital Expenditure on tangible assets for research and development is classified as PPE
and is depreciated based on the estimated useful life. Other expenditure incurred for
research and development are expensed under the respective heads of accounts in the
year in which it is incurred.

(viii) The Company follows the useful lives of the significant parts of certain class of PPE on
best estimate basis upon technical advice, as detailed below, that are different from the
useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013:

Type of Plant and Machinery Useful life of such components ranging from

Textile Machineries / Equipment 2 to 15 Years

Wind Mills 22 to 30 Years

HFO & DG Sets 12 to 25 Years

Electrical Machineries  3 to 25 years

(ix) PPE acquired in full or part exchange for another asset are recorded at the fair market
value or the net book value of the asset given up, adjusted for any balancing cash
transaction. Fair market value is determined either for the assets acquired or asset given
up, whichever is more clearly evident.

(x) PPEs are eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit
is expected from its use. Gains or losses arising from disposal, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of such assets, are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amount received towards PPE that are impaired and
derecognized in the financial statements, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss,
when the recognition criteria are met.

(xi) Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life on a straight line method. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an
asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less 5% being its residual value, except for
process control systems whose residual value is considered as Nil.

(xii) Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such
additions. For deletion/disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the
date on which such assets have been discarded / sold.

(xiii) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed periodically including at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

F. Capital Work in progress / Capital Advances

(i) Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation,
under development including related expenses and attributable interest as at the reporting
date.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii) Advances given towards acquisition / construction of PPE outstanding at the reporting date

are disclosed as 'Capital Advances' under 'Other Non-Current Assets'.

G. Leases

(i) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 with effect from 01-04-2019 using the Modified
Retrospective Approach and accordingly the comparative figures for the previous figures
has not been restated and continue to be reported under Ind AS 17.

(ii) Ind AS 116 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model. The Company, as a lessee, upon transition to Ind AS 116, elected to measure the
lease liability for all leases whose non-cancellable leases is more than 12 months, at the
present value of remaining lease payments discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application and recognise the right-of-use asset at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted for prepaid lease payments recognised in the balance
immediately before the date of initial application.

(iii) The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date whether fulfilment of arrangement is
dependent on the use of an underlying asset and the arrangement conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

(i) The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

(ii) The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term.

(iii) The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any.

(iv) The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in 'Property, Plant and Equipment' and Lease liabilities in 'Borrowings' in the
Balance sheet.

(v) The Company has opted not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The company recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company as a Lessor

The lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
substantially vests with the Lessor are recognised as operating lease. Operating lease
receipts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the
lease terms except where the payments are structured to increase in line with the general
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The Company do not
have any finance leases arrangements.

H. Revenue Recognition

(i) Revenue from Operations

a) Sale of products

Revenue from product sales is recognized when the company transfers control of the
product to customers at a point in time. The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods to the customer. The Company provides discounts to customers on the
achievement of the performance criteria based on agreed terms and conditions. The
financing component with regard to sale of products are excluded from Revenue
from operations and recognized as Interest Receipts over the credit periods as per
Ind AS 115. The Company does not have any non-cash consideration.

b) Power generated from Windmills

Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling & banking
arrangement with TANGEDCO are consumed at Mills. The monetary values of such
power generated that are captively consumed are not recognised as revenue, but
have been set off against the cost of Power & Fuel.

The value of unadjusted units available if any, at the end of the financial year and
sold to the Electricity Board at an agreed rate / tariff rate are recognized and shown
as income from Wind Mills.

c) Scrap sale

Scrap sales is recognized when the Company transfers control of the product to
customers.

(ii) Other Income

a) Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period where appropriate,
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability.

b) Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is
established.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

c) Rental income from operating lease on investment properties is recognised on a

straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

I. Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits viz., Salaries and Wages are recognized as an expense at

the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the

related service is rendered.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan viz., Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund

are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which

the employees have rendered services.

(iii) The Company contributes monthly to Employees' Provident Fund & Employees' Pension

Fund administered by the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation, Government of India,

at 12% of employee's basic salary and dearness allowance. The Company has no further

obligations.

(iv) The Company also contributes for superannuation fund a sum equivalent to 15% of the

officer's eligible annual basic salary. Out of the said 15% contribution, a sum upto

$ 1.50 Lacs per annum is remitted to The Rajapalayam Mills Limited Officers'

Superannuation Fund administered by trustees and managed by LIC of India. The balance

amount, if any, is paid as salary. There are no further obligations in respect of the above

contribution plan.

(v) The Company contributes to Defined Benefit Plan viz., an approved Gratuity Fund. It is

in the form of lump sum payments to vested employees on resignation, retirement, death

while in employment or on termination of employment, for an amount equivalent to

15 days' basic salary and dearness allowance for each completed year of service. Vesting

occurs upon completion of five years of continuous service. The Company makes annual

contributions to "Rajapalayam Mills Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund" administered by

trustees and managed by LIC of India, based on the Actuarial Valuation by an independent

external actuary as at the reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

(vi) The Company provides for expenses towards compensated absences provided to its

employees. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable

determined based on an independent external actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet

date, using Projected Unit Credit method.

(vii) Remeasurement of net defined benefit asset / liability comprising of actuarial gains or

losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are

charged / credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise and

immediately transferred to retained earnings. Other costs are accounted in the Statement

of Profit and Loss.



192

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

J. Government Grants

(i) Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions are complied with.

(ii) In case of revenue related grant, the income is recognised on a systematic basis over
the period for which it is intended to compensate an expense and is disclosed under
"Other operating revenue" or netted off against corresponding expenses wherever
appropriate. Receivables of such grants are shown under "Other Financial Assets".

(iii) Government grants related to assets have been deducted in arriving at the carrying
amount of the respective assets.

(iv) Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when
there is no uncertainty in receiving the same. Receivables of such benefits are shown
under "Other Financial Assets".

K. Foreign currency transactions

(i) The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's
functional currency.

(ii) All transactions in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at their functional
currency exchange rates prevailing on that date.

(iii) Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies outstanding at the reporting date are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the reporting
date and the resultant gains or losses are recognised during the year in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rates at the date of transaction.

L. Borrowing Costs

(i) Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation
of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

(ii) Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of
borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure
incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted
average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase
of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during
the period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period.
All other borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
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M. Earnings per Share

(i) Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares.

(ii) Where an item of income or expense which is otherwise required to be recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss is debited or credited to Equity, the amount in respect
thereof is suitably adjusted in Net profit for the purpose of computing Earnings per Share.

(iii) The Company does not have any potential equity shares.

N. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

(i) The carrying values of assets include property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
cash generating units and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting
date, if there is any indication of impairment based on internal and external factors.

(ii) Non-financial assets are treated as impaired when the carrying amount of such asset
exceeds its recoverable value. After recognition of impairment loss, the depreciation for
the said assets is provided for remaining useful life based on the revised carrying amount,
less its residual value if any, on straight line basis.

(iii) An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which
an asset is identified as impaired.

(iv) An impairment loss is reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may
no longer exist or may have decreased.

O. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(i) Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised
when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made.

(ii) Provisions are discounted if the effect of the time value of money is material, using
pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an
increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
These provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

(iii) Insurance claims are accounted on the basis of claims admitted or expected to be
admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it
is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. Any subsequent change in the recoverability
is provided for. Contingent Assets are not recognised.

(iv) Contingent liability is a possible obligation that may arise from past events and its existence
will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the
same are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements.
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P. Intangible Assets

(i) The costs of computer software acquired and its subsequent improvements are capitalised.
Internally generated software is not capitalized and the expenditure is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

(ii) The cost incurred for right to un-restricted usage of power transmission system for drawal
of power from State grid to its Mills were capitalized as it is expected to yield future
economic benefits.

(iii) Intangible Assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on straight line method.
The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are assessed by the internal technical
team as detailed below, that are different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C
of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013:

Nature of Intangible Assets Estimated useful life

Computer Software 6 years

Power Transmission System 5 years

(iv) The intangible assets that are under development phase are carried at cost including
related expenses and attributable interest, and are recognised as Intangible assets under
development.

(v) The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortisation of intangible asset are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Q. Investment Properties

(i) An investment in land or buildings both furnished and unfurnished, which are held for
earning rentals or capital appreciation or both rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course
of business, are classified as investment properties.

(ii) Investment properties are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any except freehold land which is carried at cost.

(iii) The company identifies the significant parts of investment properties separately which are
required to be replaced at intervals. Such parts are depreciated separately based on their
specific useful lives determined on best estimate basis upon technical advice. The cost
of replacement of significant parts are capitalised and the carrying amount of replaced
parts are de-recognised. Other expenses including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts that does not meet the capitalisation criteria, are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

(iv) Depreciation on investment properties are calculated on straight-line method based on
useful life of the significant parts as detailed below:

Asset type Useful life

Buildings under Investment properties 60 years
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(v) Investment properties are eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no
further benefit is expected from its use. Gains or losses arising from disposal, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of such
investment properties, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amount received
towards investment properties that are impaired and derecognized in the financial statements,
are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, when the recognition criteria are met.

(vi) The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment properties are
reviewed periodically including at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.

R. Operating Segments

The Company's business operation comprises of two operating segment viz., Textile and Windmills.
Operating segment has been identified on the basis of nature of products and reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker.

S. Financial Instruments

(i) A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(ii) Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Balance
sheet when and only when the Company has a legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

(iii) The Company initially determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities. After
initial recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which are categorised
as equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets / liabilities that are specifically
designated as FVTPL. However, other financial assets are re-classifiable when there is
a change in the business model of the Company. When the Company reclassifies the
financial assets, such reclassifications are done prospectively from the first day of the
immediately next reporting period. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses including impairment gains or losses or interest.

(iv) Fair Value Hedges

Changes in the fair value of forwards contracts that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recognized in the income statement, together with the changes in the
fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. If the hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are no longer recognized in the income statement.

When a hedged item in a fair value hedge is a firm commitment (or a component thereof)
to acquire an asset or assume a liability, the initial carrying amount of the asset or the
liability that results from the entity meeting the firm commitment is adjusted to include the
cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item that was recognised in the balance
sheet, with a corresponding gain or loss recognized in Profit or Loss.
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T. Financial Assets

(i) Financial assets comprise of investments in equity, trade receivables, cash and cash

equivalents and other financial assets.

(ii) Depending on the business model (i.e) nature of transactions for managing those financial

assets and its contractual cash flow characteristics, the financial assets are initially

measured at fair value and subsequently measured and classified at:

a) Amortised cost; or

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Amortised cost represents carrying amount on initial recognition at fair value plus or

minus transaction cost.

(iii) Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual

terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents solely payments of

principal and interest thereon, are measured as detailed below depending on the business

model:

Classification Business Model

Amortised cost The objective of the Company is to hold and collect the contractual

cash flows till maturity. In other words, the Company does not

intend to sell the instrument before its contractual maturity to realise

its fair value changes.

FVTOCI The objective of the Company is to collect its contractual cash flows

and selling financial assets.

(iv) The Company has accounted for its investments in associates at cost. The Company has

exercised an irrevocable option at time of initial recognition to measure the changes in

fair value of other equity investments at FVTOCI. Accordingly, the Company classifies its

financial assets for measurement as below:

Classification Name of Financial Assets

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans and advances to employees and related

parties, deposits, IPA receivable, interest receivable, unbilled revenue

and other advances recoverable in cash or kind.

FVTOCI Equity investments in companies other than Associate as an option

exercised at the time of initial recognition.

FVTPL Forward exchange contracts.
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(v) Financial assets are derecognised (i.e) removed from the financial statements, when its
contractual rights to the cash flows expire or upon transfer of the said assets. The
Company also derecognises when it has an obligation to adjust the cash flows arising
from the financial asset with third party and either upon transfer of:

a. significant risk and rewards of the financial asset, or

b. control of the financial asset

However, the Company continues to recognise the transferred financial asset and its
associated liability to the extent of its continuing involvement, which are measured on the
basis of retainment of its rights and obligations of financial asset.

(vi) Upon derecognition of its financial asset or part thereof, the difference between the
carrying amount measured at the date of recognition and the consideration received
including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed shall be recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(vii) For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at
each reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share
similar credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done retrospectively
on the following basis:

Name of
Impairment testing methodology

Financial asset

Trade receivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over lifetime

of the assets are estimated by using a provision matrix which is

based on historical loss rates reflecting current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions which are grouped on the

basis of similar credit characteristics such as nature of industry,

customer segment, past due status and other factors that are relevant

to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

Other Financial When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL

Assets is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is significant

change in credit risk since initial recognition, the impairment is

measured based on probability of default over the life time. If, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such

that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment

loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.
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U. Financial Liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities comprise of Borrowings from Banks, Trade payables, Derivative financial
instruments, Financial guarantee obligation and other financial liabilities.

(ii) The Company measures its financial liabilities as below:

Measurement
Name of Financial liabilities

basis

Amortised cost Borrowings, Trade payables, Interest accrued, Unclaimed / Disputed
dividends, Security deposits and other financial liabilities not for
trading.

FVTPL Foreign exchange Forward contracts and other financial liabilities
held for trading.

(iii) Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Transaction cost of financial guarantee contracts that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee are recognised initially as a liability at fair value. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

(iv) Financial liabilities are derecognised when and only when it is extinguished (i.e) when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

(v) Upon derecognition of its financial liabilities or part thereof, the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

V. Fair value measurement

(i) Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(ii) The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that the market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that the market
participants act in the economic best interest.

(iii) All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured are disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is
described as below:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities



199

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that are significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that are significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

(iv) For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Balance sheet on a recurring basis,
the company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period (i.e) based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

(v) For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined the classes of
assets and liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or
liabilities and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(vi) The basis for fair value determination for measurement and / or disclosure purposes is
detailed below:

a) Investments in Equity

The fair value is determined by reference to their quoted prices at the reporting date.
In the absence of the quoted price, the fair value of the equity is measured using
valuation techniques.

b) Trade and other receivables

The fair value is estimated as the present value of the future cash flows, discounted
at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. However, the fair value generally
approximates the carrying amount due to the short term nature of such assets.

c) Forward exchange contracts

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on the quoted price if available;
otherwise it is estimated by discounting the difference between contractual forward
price and current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using
government bond rates.

d) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities viz, borrowings are determined for
disclosure purposes calculated based on the present value of future principal and
interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

e) Financial guarantee obligation

The fair value of financial guarantee obligation with reference to loan availed by
associates is determined on the basis of estimated cost involved in securing equivalent
size of the guarantees from bank.



200

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f) Investment Properties

The fair value is determined for disclosure purposes based on an annual evaluation

performed by an internal technical team measured using the technique of quoted

prices for similar assets in the active markets and further moderated by market

corroborated inputs.

6. Significant Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities

and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results

could vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which

the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision

or future periods, if the revision affects both current and future years.

Accordingly, the management has applied the following estimates / assumptions / judgements

in preparation and presentation of financial statements:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating

to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, other financial / other

non-financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties

in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval

of these financial statements, has used internal and external sources of information from

market sources on the expected future performance of the Company. The impact of

COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the

date of approval of these financial statements due to prevailing uncertainties.

(i) Revenue Recognition

Significant management judgement is exercised in determining the transaction price and

discounts to customer which is based on market factors namely demand and supply.

The Company offers credit period to customers and management judgement is exercised

in assessing whether a contract contains a significant financing component.

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and Investment Properties

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment

Properties are assessed by the technical team periodically including at each reporting

date by taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the

operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance support.

Upon review, the management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for

computation of depreciation / amortization. Also, management judgement is exercised for

classifying the asset as investment properties or vice versa.
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(iii) Current Taxes

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws

and management's judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and

interpretations of relevant provisions of law and applicable judicial precedence.

(iv) Deferred Tax Asset (Including MAT Credit Entitlement)

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets

at each reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be

retained / recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits

together with future tax planning strategies.

(v) Provisions

The timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and

circumstances that may be subject to change. The litigations and claims to which the

company is exposed are assessed by the management and in certain cases with the

support of external experts. The amounts are determined by discounting the expected

future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

(vi) Segment Reporting

Management's judgment is exercised to aggregate two or more business segments as

single operating segment, based on economic characteristics, products, production process

and types of customer, which are similar in nature.

(vii) Contingent Liabilities

Management judgement is exercised for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if

any, in respect of contingencies / claims / litigations against the Company as it is not

possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

(viii) Impairment of Trade receivables

The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of

default and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of

impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market

conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

(ix) Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE / Intangible Assets / Investment Properties)

The impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable

amount of such assets. The assumptions used in computing the recoverable amount are

based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows, discount

rates and the risks specific to the asset.
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(x) Impairment of Investments in Associates

Significant management judgement is exercised in determining whether the investment
in associates are impaired or not is on the basis of its nature of long term strategic
investments and business projections.

(xi) Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits, and the present value
of such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are
reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature,
this obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

(xii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model / Net Asset Value Method, to determine
its fair value. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility.

In case of unrecognised firm commitments denominated in foreign currency, which also
qualify as a hedged item, the fair value of such firm commitments outstanding at the
reporting date are measured at functional currency based on the quoted price in the
active market prevailing on the reporting date.

(xiii) Interests in other entities

Significant management judgement is exercised in determining the interests in other
entities. The management believes that wherever there is a significant influence over
certain companies belonging to its group, such companies are treated as Associate
companies even though it holds less than 20% of the voting rights.
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NOTE NO. 8
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Land

As at the beginning of the year 55.17 55.17

Addition / Sale  – –

As at the end of the year
55.17 55.17

Building
As at the beginning of the year 126.05 126.05

Addition / Sale – –

As at the end of the year 126.05 126.05

Less:

Accumulated depreciation as at the beginning of the year 36.27 36.04

Depreciation for the year (Refer to Note No. 38) 0.24 0.23

Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year 36.51 36.27

Net Block 89.54 89.78

Total Investment Property 144.71 144.95

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property

Rental Income from Investment Properties 0.68 0.68

Direct Operating Expenses – –

Profit arising from Investment Properties before Depreciation

and indirect expenses 0.68 0.68

Less: Depreciation 0.24 0.23

Profit arising from Investment Properties before  indirect expenses 0.44 0.45

Fair Value of Investment Property 1,348.68 1,476.81

Notes:

(i) The Company measured all of its Investment Properties at Cost in accordance with Ind AS 40.

(ii) The fair valuation of these investment property are determined by an internal technical team, who are specialists

in valuing these types of investment properties by using the technic of quoted prices for similar assets in active
markets or recent price of similar properties in less active markets and adjusted to reflect those differences.

(iii) The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to

purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment properties have been provided in Note No. 50.

($ in Lakhs)

As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NO. 10

INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Name of the Company
Face Value No. of No. of
$ per share Shares Shares

Amount Amount

Investment in Equity Instruments

1) Quoted

The Ramco Cements Limited 1 3,30,65,000 3,30,65,000 1,38,939.43 1,31,280.58

Ramco Industries Limited 1 84,01,680 84,01,680 12,294.96 11,647.31

Ramco System Limited 10 7,33,531 7,33,531 4,947.82 4,882.33

Total 1,56,182.21 1,47,810.22

Quoted Investments - Carrying Value 1,56,182.21 1,47,810.22
Market Value 1,80,025.85 2,63,084.78

Note:
The carrying amount of investment in Associates is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36. The investment
in Assoicates are long term strategic in nature, no impairmnet is considered as at the reporting date, considering its long
term future prospects.

NOTE NO. 11

OTHER INVESTMENT

Name of the Company Face Value No. of No. of
$ per share shares shares Amount Amount

I. Investment in Equity Instruments

1) Quoted

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited 10 4,000 4,000 7.60 6.40

Lakshmi Automatic Loom Works Limited 10 2,500 2,500 0.64 1.08

Tamilnadu Jai Bharath Mills Limited 10 1,200 1,200 0.05 0.04

Total Quoted Investments (A) 8.29 7.52

2) Unquoted
Sri Vishnu Shankar Mills Limited 10 38,400 38,400 76.80 38.40
Ramco Industrial and Technology
Services Limited 10 50,000 50,000 13.00 10.00
Ramco Windfarms Limited 1 832,000 832,000 8.32 8.32
Miot Hospitals Limited 10 2,500 2,500 0.25 0.25
ARS Energy Private Limited 10 280 – 0.77 –

Total Unquoted Investments (B) 99.14 56.97

II. Investment in Preference Shares, Non-Trade  - Unquoted

Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited (C) 10 2,50,00,000 2,50,00,000 2,500.00 2,500.00

Note: The investment in the above preference shares have been made by conversion of Inter Corporate Loan given by
the Company to Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited.

($ in Lakhs)
As at As at As at As at

31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

($ in Lakhs)
As at As at As at As at

31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Name of the Company
Face Value No. of No. of
$ per share Shares Shares

Amount Amount

III. Other Non-Current Investments, Non-Trade - Unquoted

Ramco Group Employees' Co-operative
Stores Limited 1 500 500 0.01 0.01

Total other investments (D) 0.01 0.01

Total (A+B+C+D) 2,607.44 2,564.50

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments NA NA

Notes: (i) Refer to Note No. 50 for information about fair value hierarchy under Disclosure of Fair Value Measurement.
(ii) Market Value of quoted investments for some equity instruments were not available due to no trading

activities in stock market.

NOTE NO. 12
FINANCIAL ASSETS - (NON CURRENT)  LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and Advances to Related Parties [Refer to Note No.48 b (i)] 950.00 950.00

NOTE NO. 13

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - (NON CURRENT)
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits with Electricity Board / Others 990.67 924.32

NOTE NO. 14

OTHER NON CURRENT-ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 819.76 6,939.62
Deposits under protest, in Appeals – 11.21
Income Tax Refund Receivable 85.74 158.70
Prepaid Expenses - Non-Current 56.85 53.97

962.35 7,163.50

NOTE NO. 15

INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Finished Goods (Yarn and Fabrics) 4,423.23 3,166.14
Raw materials - Cotton,  Cotton Waste & Yarn 7,599.42 9,637.41
Stores and Spares 413.09 245.94
Works-in-progress (Cotton and Yarn) 2,248.50 1,856.29

14,684.24 14,905.78
Notes: (i) Raw materials includes Goods-in-transit of $ 881.86 Lakhs (PY: $ 647.34 Lakhs).

(ii) The total carrying amount of inventories as at reporting date has been pledged as Security for Borrowings.
(iii) Provision for Mark to Market losses of $ 218.34 Lakhs has been made in the value of inventories of Raw materials

(PY: NIL).
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NOTE NO. 16

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Secured, considered good 1,138.00 1,004.32
Unsecured, considered good 3,924.68 5,204.59

5,062.68 6,208.91
Notes: (i) Trade receivables are generally non-interest bearing.

(ii) No trade receivable are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with

any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively
in which any Director is a partner, a Director or a Member.

(iii) The total carrying amount of trade receivables has been pledged as security for Borrowings.

NOTE NO. 17

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on Hand 1.26 2.12
Balance with Bank

In Current Account 108.29 151.50
109.55 153.62

NOTE NO. 18

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Deposits with Banks held as security against Borrowings 475.00 150.00

Earmarked balances with Banks for Unclaimed Dividend 54.93 64.68

529.93 214.68

NOTE NO. 19
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
Government Grants Receivable 400.82 415.63
Security Deposit – 13.00
Insurance Claim receivable – 0.45
Derivatives Designated as Hedges - Foreign Exchange Forward Contract 233.98  448.18

634.80 877.26

NOTE NO. 20
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to Suppliers / Others 192.86 88.96
Tax Credit - Indirect Taxes 1,657.12 1,295.18
Accrued Income 58.82 64.27
Prepaid Expenses 151.81 165.66
Other Current Assets 38.58 30.67

2,099.19 1,644.74

($ in Lakhs)

As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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c. Rights / Restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a face value of $ 10/- each.  Each Shareholder is eligible
for one vote per share held. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.  In the event of liquidation
of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts.  The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the shareholders.

d. List of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent in the Company

As at 31-03-2020 As at 31-03-2019

Particulars No. of % of No. of % of
Shares holding Shares holding

Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja 14,66,080 19.88% 14,66,080 19.88%

Shri P.V. Abinav Ramasubramaniam Raja 19,51,952 26.47% 19,51,952 26.47%

($ in Lakhs)

As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019

NOTE NO. 21

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of $ 10/- each 1,500.00 1,500.00
(PY: 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of $ 10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up
73,76,160 Equity Shares of $ 10/- each 736.01 736.01
(PY: 73,76,160 Equity Shares of $ 10/- each)

a. Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up Shares includes 62,13,850 Equity Shares (PY: 62,13,850 Equity Shares) of
$ 10/- each, which were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares by Capitalisation of Reserves.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding

As at 31-03-2020 As at 31-03-2019

Particulars No. of
Amount

No. of
Amount

Shares Shares

Number of Shares at the beginning  73,76,160 737.62  73,76,160 737.62

Issued during the year - Bonus Issue  – – – –

Issued during the year - Preferential Issue  – – – –

Number of Shares at the end  73,76,160  737.62  73,76,160  737.62
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NOTE NO. 22

OTHER EQUITY
Capital Reserve 3.75 3.75
Capital Reserve on Consolidation 1,05,407.59 1,05,407.59
Securities Premium Reserve 1,490.48 1,490.48
General Reserve 68,037.16 59,521.96
FVTOCI Reserve 5.02  (37.15)
Retained Earnings 3,200.00 3,000.00

1,78,144.00 1,69,386.63

Capital Reserve
Represents the difference between the shares allotted to the Share Holders of Transferor Company and Net Worth
acquired from Transferor Company as per scheme of Amalgamation.

Capital Reserve on Consolidation
Capital Reserve on Consolidation represents excess of the Parent's share of the net fair value of the investments in
Associates over the cost of the investments which is recognised directly in Equity as Capital Reserve upon transition.

Securities Premium Reserve
Represents excess of share subscription money reserved over par value of shares.

FVTOCI Reserve
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income Reserve represents the balance in equity for items to be accounted
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company has opted to recognise the changes in the fair value of certain
investments in equity instruments and remeasurement of defined benefit obligations in OCI. The Company transfers
amounts from this reserve to Retained Earnings in case of actuarial loss / gain and in case of fair value recognition of
equity instrument, the same will be transferred when the respective equity instruments are derecognised.

General reserve
The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained profits. There is no policy of regular
transfer.

Retained earnings
Represents that portion of the net income of the Company that has been retained by the Company.

The Board of Directors have recommended the payment of Final Dividend $1/- per share for the year 2019-20
(PY $4/- per Share). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

NOTE NO. 23

NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

Secured
Term Loan from Banks 27,505.64 18,844.13

Unsecured
Term Loan from Banks 3,500.00 741.18

31,005.64 19,585.31

($ in Lakhs)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019
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a) Term Loan from Banks of $ 23,199.39 Lakhs (PY: $ 15,244.13 Lakhs) are secured by pari-passu first charge on
moveable Fixed Assets of the Company and pari-passu second charge on the Current Assets of the Company.

b) Term Loan of $ 4,306.25 Lakhs (PY: $ 3,600 Lakhs) are secured by residual charge on moveable Fixed Assets
of the Company.

NOTE NO. 24

PROVISION (NON - CURRENT)

Provision for Employee Benefits [Refer to Note No. 44] 400.30 347.83

NOTE NO. 25

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)

Deferred Tax Liability

Tax effect on difference between book depreciation and depreciation
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 6,974.48 5,819.45

Tax effect on Fair Value Measurement 11.46  (6.49)

Deferred Tax Asset

Tax effect on unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,708.50) –

Tax impact on Provision for Bonus and Leave Encashment  (235.08)  (261.93)

Unused Tax Credits (MAT Credit Entitlement)  (3,273.11)  (3,273.11)

1,769.25 2,277.92

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
Opening balance as on 1st April 2,277.92 2,442.97

Tax (Savings) / Expense during the period recognised in Profit and Loss  (508.67)  (188.84)

Deferred Tax recognised in OCI – 23.79

Closing balance as on 31st March 1,769.25 2,277.92

($ in Lakhs)

As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

c) The Long Term Borrowings from Banks are repayable in quarterly installments. The year wise repayment is as
follows:

Year Amount Amount

2020-21 –  4,285.02
2021-22  7,108.19  3,530.82
2022-23  6,828.85  3,240.38
2023-24  4,692.74  1,896.17
2024-25  3,545.56  1,907.21
2025-26  2,778.88  1,442.13
2026-27  2,607.60  1,490.21
2027-28  3,074.00  1,793.37
2028-29  369.82 –

31,005.64 19,585.31
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($ in Lakhs)

As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019

NOTE NO. 26
DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred Income Government Grants – 28.58

NOTE NO. 27
CURRENT BORROWINGS
Secured
Loan from Banks 12,152.75 12,099.18
Unsecured
Loan from Banks 5,273.15 5,000.00
Loans and Advances from Related Party [Refer to Note No.48 (b) (ii)] 2,574.98 2,935.56

20,000.88 20,034.74
Borrowings are secured by pari-passu first charge on the current assets of the Company and pari-passu second charge
on the fixed assets of the Company.

NOTE NO. 28
TRADE PAYABLES
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 40.97 –
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,792.92 1,940.64
1,833.89 1,940.64

Notes: The categorization of supplier as MSME registered under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, has been determined based on the information available with the company as at the reporting
date.The disclosures as per the requirement of the Act are furnished as below:

(a) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the
financial year included in Trade payables 40.97 –

(ii) The interest due on the above – –
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Act – –
(c) The amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during the financial year – –
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of financial year – –
(e) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment

but without adding the interest specified under this Act – –
Refer to Note No. 52 for information about risk profile of Trade payables under Financial Risk Management.

NOTE NO. 29
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long Term Loans 7,289.29 6,228.43
Interest Accrued 253.50 137.05
Unpaid Dividends 54.93 64.68
PACR Memorial Fund 28.40 67.45
Liabilities for Other Finance 1,027.97 1,209.75
Financial Guarantee Contracts 30.32 180.38
Derivatives Designated as Hedges - Foreign Exchange Forward Contract – 448.18

8,684.41 8,335.92
NOTE NO. 30
PROVISIONS, CURRENT
Provision for Employee Benefits 550.03 647.29

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

NOTE NO. 31

REVENUE FROM OPERATION

Sale of Products

Yarn 34,719.03 40,191.56

Waste Cotton 513.66
35,232.69

434.11
40,625.67 

Other Operating Revenues

Export Incentive 97.40 113.46

Jobwork Charges Received 452.13 522.70

35,782.22 41,261.83

Note: Revenue from operation does not include an amount of $ 887.22 Lakhs, being sale value of fabric, which has
been produced during trial run and netted-off with trial run expenses and capitalised during the financial year
2019-20 in accordance with Ind AS -16 (PY: NIL).

NOTE NO. 32

FINANCE INCOME ·

Interest Receipts 290.52 320.69

NOTE NO. 33

OTHER INCOME

Rent Receipts 41.40 36.14

Dividend Income 225.00 1,059.06

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 12.21 –

Exchange Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions (Net) 12.88 21.63

Government Grants 2.01 1.91

Miscellaneous Income 268.46 139.51

561.96 1,258.25

NOTE NO. 34

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Rawmaterials Consumed

Cotton & Cotton Waste 19,589.62 22,840.20

Note: Raw material consumed does not include an amount of $ 451.20 Lakhs, being value of yarn consumed at fabric
unit, during trial run and capitalised during the financial year 2019-20 in accordance with Ind AS-16 (PY: NIL).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE NO. 35

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 3,166.14 1,743.57

Work-in-Progress 1,856.29 5,022.43 1,585.39 3,328.96

Less: Value of Stock transferred to Trial Run 611.09

Add: Value of Stock transferred from Trial Run 405.11

4,816.45

Closing Stock

Finished Goods 4,423.23 3,166.14

Work-in-Progress 2,248.50 6,671.73 1,856.29 5,022.43

Net Increase in Stock (1,855.28) (1,693.47)

NOTE NO. 36

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 4,844.98 4,979.72

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 622.79 621.15

Staff and Labour Welfare & Training Expenses 250.74 285.74

5,718.51 5,886.61

NOTE NO. 37

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Debts and Borrowings 2,398.77 2,106.00

Exchange differences on Foreign Currency Borrowings regarded

as an adjustment to Borrowing cost 187.80 92.07

2,586.57 2,198.07

NOTE NO. 38

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation of Plant, Property and Equipment [Refer to Note No. 7] 3,373.24 3,165.56

Depreciation on Investment Properties [Refer to Note No. 8] 0.24 0.23

Amortization of intangible assets [Refer to Note No. 9] 11.17 12.26

3,384.65 3,178.05

($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

NOTE NO. 39

OTHER EXPENSES

Manufacturing Expenses

Power and Fuel 2,786.70 3,697.55

Packing Materials Consumption 605.51 636.89

Repairs to Buildings 126.75 122.79

Repairs to Plant and Machinery 1,070.45 944.14

Repairs - Wind Mills & Others 886.63 880.00

Mercerising Expenses 154.92 97.12

Job-work Charges Paid 312.00 215.57
5,942.96 6,594.06

Establishment Expenses

Managing Director's Remuneration 270.30 270.30

Rates and Taxes 113.92 94.16

Insurance 254.64 115.25

Postage and Telephone 18.70 18.02

Printing and Stationery 34.68 37.03

Travelling Expenses 90.97 86.62

Vehicle Maintenance 83.06 92.68

Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment – 19.55

Directors’ Sitting Fees 21.30 26.40

Rent 13.21 7.97

Audit Fees and Legal  Expenses 30.70 20.04

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 18.40 72.91

Mark to Market Loss on Cotton 218.34 –

Miscellaneous Expenses 130.14 173.27
1,298.36 1,034.20

Selling Expenses

Sales Commission 384.59 410.56

Export Expenses 176.28 189.28

Other Selling Expenses 201.52
762.39

148.82
749.66

8,003.71 8,377.92

Note: The details of CSR Expenditure are furnished in Annexure - II to the Directors' Report.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

NOTE NO. 40
AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

As Auditor:

      Audit fee 5.00 4.40

      Tax audit fee 0.60 0.60

In other capacity:

      Taxation matters 0.60 0.60

      Other services (Certification fees) 0.70 1.54

      Reimbursement of Expenses 0.53 0.66

7.43 7.80

NOTE NO. 41
INCOME TAX
Components of Tax Expenses

(i) Current Tax

Charged in Profit or Loss section – 102.47

Charged in Other Comprehensive Income section –  (23.79)

– 78.68

(ii) Deferred Tax

Charged in Profit or Loss section  (508.67)  (188.84)

Charged in Other Comprehensive Income section – 23.79

 (508.67)  (165.05)

Reconciliation Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit

Accounting Profit before Tax including OCI (1,670.18) 1,282.25

Corporate Tax Rate 31.20% 34.944%

Computed Tax Expenses at India's statutory Income Tax Rate – 449.47

Increase / (Reduction) in taxes on account of:

Tax adjustment of earlier years.

Income exempt / eligible for deduction Under Chapter VI-A – (686.61)

Non-deductible expenses – 284.00

Other exempted Items  –  (46.86)

Net effective income tax under Regular method        (A) – –

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Income Tax under MAT

Accounting Profit before Tax including OCI (1,670.18) 1,286.25

Tax rate under MAT 15.60% 21.549%

Computed Tax Expenses at India's statutory Income Tax Rate  – 277.17

Adjustment for Income exempt / items eligible for deduction Under MAT provision –  (198.49)

Net effective Income Tax (B)  – 78.68

Tax applicable higher of (A) or  (B)  –  78.68

Deferred Tax Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Tax impact on difference between book depreciation and depreciation

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 1,155.03 (85.41)

Tax effect on Fair Value Measurement 17.95 0.96

Tax effect on unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961  (1,708.50) –

Tax effect on Provision for Bonus and Leave Encashment 26.85 (1.92)

Unused Tax Credit i.e. MAT Credit Entitlement –  (78.68)

 (508.67)  (165.05)

NOTE NO. 42

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees given by the bankers on behalf of Group 233.45 155.05

Demands / Claims not acknowledged as Debts

in respect of matters in appeals relating to -

- Parent 704.50 595.45

- Parent’s share in Associates 15,497.98 15,949.77

NOTE NO. 43

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE GIVEN TO BANKS TO AVAIL LOAN FACILITIES BY RELATED PARTIES

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 2,800 2,800

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 3,500 3,500

Actual amount of loan outstanding against above Financial Guarantees

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 957 1,871

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 1,036 2,057

($ in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

31-03-2020 31-03-2019

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NO. 44

As per Ind AS 19, the disclosures pertaining to "Employee Benefits" are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan:

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 379.95 364.34

Employer's Contribution to Superannuation Fund 42.88 36.91

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The Gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time

of leaving the services of the Company and is in accordance with the rules of the Company read with

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. This is a defined benefit plan in nature. The Company makes annual

contributions to “Rajapalayam Mills Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund” administered by the Trustees and

managed by LIC of India, based on the Actuarial Valuation by an Independent external actuary as at the

Balance Sheet date using Projected Unit Credit method. The Company has the exposure of actuarial risk

such as adverse salary growth, change in demography experience, inadequate return on underlying plan

assets. This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the

benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity):

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Present Value of Obligation:

As at the beginning of the year 1,067.72 937.58

Current Service Cost 85.50 74.14

Interest Cost 78.30 69.28

Actuarial Loss 75.19 67.15

Benefits paid (-) 96.46 (-) 80.43

As at the end of the year 1,210.25 1,067.72

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Fair Value of Plan

Assets

As at the beginning of the year 923.94 844.41

Expected return on plan assets 72.87 65.76

Actuarial gain / (loss) 1.98 (-) 0.94

Employer Contribution 146.15 95.14

Benefits paid (-) 96.46 (-) 80.43

As at the end of the year 1,048.48 923.94
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($ in Lakhs)

31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Actual Return on Plan Assets:

Expected Return on Plan Assets 72.87 65.76

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets 1.98 (-) 0.94

Actual Return on Plan Assets 74.85 64.82

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations:

Fair value of plan assets 1,210.25 1,067.72

Present value of obligation 1,048.48 923.94

Difference, Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 161.77 143.78

Expenses recognized during the year:

Current Service Cost 85.50 74.14

Net Interest on Obligations 5.43 3.52

Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 90.93 77.66

Amount recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial changes arising from:

Experience adjustments on Plan Liabilities 2.88 62.55

Experience adjustments on Plan Assets 1.98 0.94

Changes in financial assumptions (-) 78.07 4.60

Changes in demographic assumptions – –

Amount recognized in OCI during the year 73.21 68.09

Investment Details

Funds with LIC 1,042.41 920.03

Bank Balance 6.07 3.91

Total 1,048.48 923.94

Actuarial assumptions:

LIC 2012-14 Table applied for service mortality rate Yes Yes

Discount rate p.a 6.67% 7.68%

Expected rate of Return on Plan Assets p.a. 6.67% 7.68%

Rate of escalation in salary p.a 3.75% 4.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover 0.05% 0.50%

Estimate of Expected Benefit payments

Year 1 32.95 13.53

Year 2 39.90 122.08

Year 3 29.96 52.79

Year 4 55.59 38.14

Year 5 50.88 62.15

Next 5 Years 696.50 589.27

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Quantitative Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumptions

0.50% Increase in Discount Rate 90.15 80.01

0.50% Decrease in Discount Rate 104.76 91.55

0.50% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 104.97 91.78

0.50% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate 89.91 79.77

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized within the
Balance Sheet.

Defined Benefit Plan (Leave encashment plan):

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Present Value of Obligation:
As at the beginning of the year 391.64 315.97
Current Service Cost 28.88 22.96
Interest Cost 27.15 23.23
Actuarial Loss 43.84 59.51
Benefits paid (-) 76.25 (-) 30.03
As at the end of the year 415.26 391.64

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Fair Value of Plan Assets:
As at the beginning of the year NIL NIL
Expected return on plan assets NIL NIL
Actuarial gain / (loss) NIL NIL
Employer Contribution 76.25 30.03
Benefits paid (-) 76.25 (-) 30.03
As at the end of the year NIL NIL

Actual Return of plan assets:
Expected return of plan assets NIL NIL
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets NIL NIL
Actual return on plan assets NIL NIL

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations:
Fair value of plan assets NIL NIL
Present value of obligation 415.26 391.64
Difference, Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet 415.26 391.64

Expenses recognized during the year:
Current Service Cost 28.88 22.96
Net Interest on obligations 27.15 23.23
Actuarial Gain recognized during the year 43.84 59.51

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 99.87 105.70

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Amount recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial changes arising from :

Experience adjustments on Plan Liabilities NIL NIL

Experience adjustments on Plan Assets NIL NIL

Changes in financial assumptions NIL NIL

Changes in demographic assumptions NIL NIL

Amount recognized in OCI during the year NIL NIL

Investment Details

Funds with LIC NIL NIL

Bank Balance NIL NIL

Total NIL NIL

Actuarial assumptions:

LIC 2012-14 Table applied for service mortality rate         Yes Yes

Discount rate p.a 6.67% 7.68%

Expected rate of Return on Plan Assets p.a.        NIL NIL

Rate of escalation in salary p.a    3.75% 4.00%

Rate of Employee Turnover      0.05% 0.50%

Estimate of Expected Benefit payments

Year 1 12.28 29.62

Year 2 11.57 32.71

Year 3 17.80 14.92

Year 4 25.51 12.32

Year 5 8.21 24.42

Next 5 Years 264.97 204.10

Quantitative Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumptions

0.50% Increase in Discount Rate 29.22 27.26

0.50% Decrease in Discount Rate 33.83 30.66

0.50% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 33.89 30.71

0.50% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate 29.15 27.20

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised within the
Balance Sheet.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NO. 45

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARD OF IND AS 116, LEASES

Consequent to the introduction of Ind AS 116 on Leases replacing the old standard Ind AS 17, the company has applied
Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective approach with the date of initial application of 1st April, 2019. Thus, the
Company has changed its accounting policy and measured lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and recognize
Right-of-Use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments, if any, relating to that lease recognized in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.

In case of short-term leases, whose lease term is 12 months or less, the Company as a lessee opted to recognize the
lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Further,
the Company, as a lessee, opted not to apply the requirements whose lease term ends within 12 months from date of
initial application. In this case, the Company account for those leases in the same way as short-term leases.

COMPANY AS A LESSEE

Nature of leasing activities

The Company has entered into operating lease on certain assets i.e land and building. Lease rentals are determined
based on agreed terms. There is escalation clause in certain lease agreements after a specified period and no restriction
imposed by the lease arrangements.

Other disclosures as required by Ind AS 116: ($ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Depreciation charge for Right-of-use asset 6.94 6.35

Interest on lease liabilities NIL NIL

Expenses relating to short-term leases 13.21 7.97

Total cash outflow for leases including principal and interest NIL NIL

Additions to Right-of-use assets upon transition to Ind AS 116 NIL 722.03

Carrying amount of Right-of-use assets at 31st March 708.74 715.68

Notes:
i) The Company has capitalized one time non-refundable upfront charge for  Right-to-Use of Land during the year NIL

(PY: $ 722.03 Lakhs).
ii) Expenses relating to Short-term lease include leases whose lease term ends within 12 months from date of initial

application and leases whose non-cancellable period is less than 12 months, irrespective of the actual tenure agreed
as per the arrangement.

COMPANY AS A LESSOR

The Company has entered into operating leases i.e Land & Building. The Company has not entered into any Finance
leases. Future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at the reporting date is given below:

($ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Not later than one year 1.05 0.88

One to five years 5.85 5.58

More than five years 12.25 13.57



223

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NO. 46

Disclosure of Interests in Associates under equity method

Name of the Company Location Principal activities of Business

The Ramco Cements Limited (TRCL) India Manufacture of Cement and Cementious materials

Ramco Industries Limited (RIL) India Manufacture of Building materials and Textiles

Ramco Systems Limited (RSL) India Software development

Name of the Company
% Shareholding as at

31-03-2020 31-03-2019

The Ramco Cements Limited 14.04% 14.04%

Ramco Industries Limited 9.69% 9.69%

Ramco Systems Limited 2.40% 2.40%

Summarised financial information for Associates:

The summarized consolidated financial statements of the material associates are as below:

($ in Lakhs)

Balance Sheet Non-current Investment in Current Non-current Current Total
Assets Associates Assets  Liabilities Liabilities Equity

As at 31-03-2020

The Ramco Cements Limited 8,30,716.00 24,989.00 1,57,571.00 2,78,945.00 2,33,632.00 5,00,699.00

Ramco Industries Limited 53,158.00 2,57,109.00 61,056.00 5,228.00 45,154.00 3,20,941.00

Ramco Systems Limited 53,665.30 149.90 43,989.50 8,979.30 28,035.30 60,790.10

As at 31-03-2019

The Ramco Cements Limited 6,59,129.00 23,199.00 1,38,051.00 1,59,454.00 2,06,755.00 4,54,170.00

Ramco Industries Limited 49,360.97 2,44,027.90 57,222.81 8,281.78 37,112.76 3,05,217.14

Ramco Systems Limited 47,720.80 129.40 36,424.70 1,840.40 24,544.50 57,890.00

Note: The above financial information is amended to determine the share of interest in associates.

Profit and Loss TRCL RIL RSL
31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Total Revenue 5,42,280.00 5,18,730.00 1,01,493.00 1,06,057.11 57,808.70 55,179.80

Profit before tax 79,224.00 71,807.00 10,335.00 10,718.82 3,350.90 4,232.80

Tax expenses 18,785.00 21,061.00 3,442.00 3,267.64 2,279.70 2,546.10

Profit after Tax 60,439.00 50,746.00 6,893.00 7,451.18 1,071.20 1,686.70

Share of profit in Associate 68.00 397.00 10,060.00 9,783.87 20.60 4.40

Other Comprehensive Income (495.00) (108.00) (361.00) 308.30 1,715.00 610.20

Total Comprehensive Income 60,012.00 51,035.00 16,592.00 17,543.35 2,806.80 2,301.30
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Fair Value of Investments ($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Associates 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

The Ramco Cements Limited 1,70,086.36 2,43,457.60

Ramco Industries Limited 9,409.88 17,870.37

Ramco Systems Limited 529.61 1,756.81

Share of Contingent Liabilities in respect of associates

Name of the Associates 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

The Ramco Cements Limited 14,613.66 15,252.50

Ramco Industries Limited 643.45 480.87

Ramco Systems Limited 240.87 216.39

Reconciliation to the carrying amount of investment in associates:

Profit and Loss TRCL RIL RSL
31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Entity’s TCI 60,012.00 51,035.00 16,592.00 17,543.35 2,806.80 2,301.30

Entity’s Adjusted TCI 58,952.00 49,725.00 6,168.97 7,892.63 2,732.00 2,251.00

Effective shareholding % 16.08% 16.08% 11.86% 11.86% 2.40% 2.40%

Associates share of
profit / OCI 9,477.42 7,952.00 731.67 913.78 65.49 53.98

Less: Unrealised profit on
inter-company
transactions (net of tax) – – – – – –

Amount recognized in P & L 9,477.42 7,952.00 731.67 913.78 65.49 53.98

Reconciliation

Opening Carrying amount 1,31,280.58 1,23,230.76 11,647.31 9,764.71 4,882.33 4,828.91

Less: Adjustment on
Deemed Disposal – – – – – 0.56

Add: Acquisition during
the year – 1,084.97 – 1,008.42 – –

Add: Associate's share of
Profit / OCI 9,477.42 7,952.00 731.67 913.78 65.49 53.98

Less: Dividend received 1,818.57 987.15 84.02 39.60 – –

Net Carrying amount 1,38,939.43 1,31,280.58 12,294.96 11,647.31 4,947.82 4,882.33

Notes:

1) Adjusted TCI represents total comprehensive income of the entity after eliminating effects of reciprocal interests and
unrealized profits.

2) Effective shareholdings represent the aggregate of direct holding and indirect holding through fellow associates.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE NO. 47

EARNINGS PER SHARE ($ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Net profit after tax ($ in Lakhs) (A) 9,206.16 10,447.49

Weighted average number of Equity shares after deducting
treasury shares [In Lakhs] (B) 73.60 73.60

Nominal value per equity share (in $) 10.00 10.00

Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (A) / (B) (in $) 125.08 141.95

NOTE NO. 48

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Information on names of Related parties and nature of Relationship as required by Ind AS 24 on

Related party disclosures for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

a) Associates

Country of % of Shareholding as at
Name of the Company

Incorporation 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

The Ramco Cements Limited India 14.04% 14.04%

Ramco Industries Limited India 9.69% 9.69%

Ramco Systems Limited India 2.40% 2.40%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b) Key Managerial Personnel (including KMP under Companies Act, 2013)

Name of the Key Management Personnel Designation

Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja Chairman

Smt. R. Sudarsanam Managing Director

Smt. P.V. Nirmala Raju Non-Executive Director

Shri S.S. Ramachandra Raja Non-Executive Director

Shri N.K. Ramasuwami Raja Independent Director

Shri A.V. Dharmakrishnan Non-Executive Director

Justice Shri P.P.S. Janarthana Raja Independent Director

Shri V. Santhana Raman Independent Director

Shri K.B. Nagendra Murthy Independent Director

Smt. Soundara Kumar Independent Director

Shri P.V. Abinav Ramasubramniam Raja Non-Executive Director

Shri P.A.S Alaghar Raja Independent Director

Shri B. Gnanagurusamy Chief Financial Officer

Shri A. Arulpranavam Secretary
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c) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

Name of the Relative of KMP Relationship

Smt. R. Chittammal Spouse of Shri S.S. Ramachandra Raja

Smt. R. Nalina Ramalakshmi Sister of Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja

Smt. S. Sharada Deepa Sister of Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja

Smt. B. Sri Sandhya Raju Daughter of Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja

d) Companies over which KMP / Relatives of KMP exercise significant influence or control

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited Ramco Industrial and Technology

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited Services Limited

Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited Ramco Wind farms Limited

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited Ramco Management Private Limited

Sri Harini Textiles Limited RCDC Securities & Investments Private Limited

Shri Harini Media Limited Rajapalayam Textile Limited

e) Employee Benefit Funds where control exists

Rajapalayam Mills Limited Officers' Superannuation Fund

Rajapalayam Mills Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund

f) Other entities over which there is a significant influence

Smt. Lingammal Ramaraju Shastra Prathishta Trust PACR Sethuramammal Charity Trust
Ramco Welfare Trust PACR Sethuramammal Charities
Raja Charity Trust PAC Ramasamy Raja Education Charity Trust
Gowri Metal Works LLP Ramco Organic Farming Centre
PACR Centenary Trust

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions (excluding Reimbursements) during the year and

outstanding balances including commitments as at the reporting date:

a. Transactions during the year at Arm's length basis or its equivalent

($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Related party
Value

2019-20 2018-19

i. Good Supplied / Services rendered

Associates

Ramco Industries Limited 686.55 745.87

Ramco Systems Limited 0.81 0.81
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Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited 1,087.88 727.57

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 502.01 1,065.29

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 539.04 761.32

Rajapalayam Textile Limited 567.77 845.88

Sri Harini Textiles Limited 13.07 188.42

ii. Sale of Fixed Assets

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited 0.15 18.63

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited NIL 47.23

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 9.06 1.98

Rajapalayam Textile Limited 159.13 44.98

Sri Harini Textiles Limited 6.66 NIL

iii. Cost of Goods & Services purchased / availed

Associates

The Ramco Cements Limited 10.31 6.54

Ramco Industries Limited 761.51 496.07

Ramco Systems Limited 154.14 28.35

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited 223.12 4.03

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 1,072.27 1,039.06

Ramco Windfarms Limited 418.82 440.27

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 497.84 356.97

Rajapalayam Textile Limited 448.37 0.46

Sri Harini Textiles Limited NIL 43.35

Shri Harini Media Limited 0.74 0.74

Other entities over which there is a significant influence

PACR Sethuramammal Charity Trust 152.97 153.73

Gowrihouse Metal Works LLP 0.35 NIL

Ramco Organic Farming Centre 0.24 NIL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Related party
Value

2019-20 2018-19
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iv. Purchase of Fixed Assets

Associates
The Ramco Cements Limited 0.22 NIL
Ramco Industries Limited 252.05 NIL
Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited 62.60 66.01
Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 120.02 278.95
Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 35.12 316.09
Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited NIL 31.17
Rajapalayam Textile Limited 21.48 4.53

v. Purchase of Equity Shares
Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited NIL 1,081.60

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Smt. Saradha Deepa NIL 1,008.42

vi. Leasing Arrangements - Rent Paid
Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited NIL 813.53
Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Smt. Saradha Deepa 1.68 1.50

vii. Dividend Paid
Key Managerial Personnel
Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja 58.64 58.64
Smt. R. Sudarsanam 2.55 2.55
Smt. P.V. Nirmala Raju 0.11 0.11
Shri P.V. Abinav Ramasubramaniam Raja 78.08 78.08

Associates
The Ramco Cements Limited 1.02 1.02
Ramco Industries Limited 5.09 5.09

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited 5.41 5.41
Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 1.19 1.19
Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 0.02 0.02
Ramco Management Private Limited 0.08 0.08

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Smt. R. Chittammal 3.31 3.31
Smt. R. Nalina Ramalakshmi 0.27 0.27
Smt. S.Sharada Deepa 0.44 0.44
Smt. B. Sri Sandhya Raju 0.66 0.66

($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Related party
Value

2019-20 2018-19

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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viii. Dividend Received

Associates

The Ramco Cements Limited 1,818.58 987.15

Ramco Industries Limited 84.02 39.60

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence

The Ramaraju Surgical Cotton Mills Limited NIL 0.02

Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited 225.00 1,059.04

ix. Interest Paid / (Received)

Key Managerial Personnel
Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja 3.12 NIL
Smt. R. Sudarsanam 13.16 27.42
Smt. P.V. Nirmala Raju 2.96 NIL

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence

Sri Harini Textiles Limited (104.79) (104.50)

Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited 241.25 113.20

x. Director’s Sitting Fees

Key Managerial Personnel

Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja 1.50 2.10

Smt. R. Sudarsanam 1.20 1.50

Smt. P.V. Nirmala Raju 1.20 NIL

Shri S.S. Ramachandra Raja 1.50 1.80

Shri N.K. Ramasuwami Raja 3.00 3.60

Shri A.V. Dharmakrishnan 2.70 3.30

Justice Shri P.P.S. Janarthana Raja 3.60 4.20

Shri V. Santhanaraman 1.50 1.80

Shri K.B. Nagendra Murthy 1.80 3.30

Smt Soundara Kumar 1.20 1.20

Shri P.V. Abinav Ramasubramaniam Raja 0.90 1.80

Shri P.A.S Alaghar Raja 1.20 1.80

xi. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel (Other than Sitting Fees)

Key Managerial Personnel

Smt. R. Sudarsanam, Managing Director 270.30 270.30

Shri B. Gnanagurusamy, Chief Financial Officer 42.96 39.31

Shri A. Arulpranavam, Secretary 11.00 10.89

($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Related party
Value

2019-20 2018-19

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Related party
Value

2019-20 2018-19

xii. CSR / Donation given

Other entities over which there is a significant influence
PACR Sethuramammal Charities NIL 3.50

PAC Ramasamy Raja Education Charity Trust 9.00 37.05

PACR Centenary Trust 1.74 2.00

Raja Charity Trust 35.05 NIL

xiii. Contribution to Superannuation Fund / Gratuity Fund

Other entities over which there is a significant influence

Rajapalayam Mills Limited Officers' Superannuation Fund 42.88 36.91

Rajapalayam Mills Limited Employees' Gratuity Fund 162.56 145.75

xiv. Maximum amount of loans and advance / (borrowings) outstanding during the year

Key Managerial Personnel

Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja (72.81) NIL

Smt. R. Sudarsanam (443.38) (435.56)

Smt. P.V. Nirmala Raja (100.95) NIL

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
Sri Harini Textiles Limited 950.00 950.00

Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited (2,864.00) (2,500.00)

xv. Usage charges paid for Power Consumed by virtue of Joint Ownership of Shares with
APGPCL

Associates

The Ramco Cements Limited 0.26 3.43

b. Outstanding balance including commitments
i. Loans and advances

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
Sri Harini Textiles Limited 950.00 950.00

ii. Borrowings:
Key Managerial Personnel
Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja 72.81 NIL
Smt. R. Sudarsanam 29.51 435.56
Smt. P.V. Nirmala Raja 12.66 NIL
Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
Thanjavur Spinning Mill Limited 2,460.00 2,500.00

iii. Security deposit paid by virtue of Joint Ownership of shares with APGPCL
Associates
The Ramco Cements Limited NIL 13.00

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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($ in Lakhs)

Name of the Related party
Value

2019-20 2018-19

iv. Corporate Guarantee given to lender of Related parties

Companies over which KMP / Relative of KMP exercise significant Influence
Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 2,800.00 2,800.00

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 3,500.00 3,500.00

v. Trade Payables

Associates
Ramco Industries Limited 31.84 NIL

Notes: (a) The above outstanding balances at the respective reporting dates are unsecured and settlement occurs

in cash or through provision of goods / services, in case of unadjusted advances.

c. Disclosure of Key Managerial Personnel compensation in total and for each of the following categories:

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Short - Term Benefits [1] 289.63 287.51

Defined Contribution Plan [2] 34.63 34.49

Defined Benefit Plan / Other Long-Term Benefits [3] – –

Total 324.26 322.00

1. It includes bonus, sitting fees, and value of perquisites.

2. It includes contribution to Provident fund and Superannuation fund.

3. As the liability for gratuity and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a
whole, amounts accrued pertaining to key managerial personnel are not included above.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) The loan balance with Banks by the related parties, on the strength of the above Corporate Guarantees

given by the Company are furnished below:

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Sri Vishnu Shankar Mill Limited 957.00 1,871.00

Sandhya Spinning Mill Limited 1,036.00 2,057.00
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NOTE NO. 49

Segment Information for the year ended 31-03-2020 ($ in Lakhs)

Particulars
Textiles Power from Windmills Total

31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

REVENUE
External Sales / Other
Operating Income 35,782.22 41,261.83  –  – 35,782.22 41,261.83

Inter Segment Sale  –  – 3,975.99 4,146.18 3,975.99 4,146.18

Total 35,782.22 41,261.83 3,975.99 4,146.18 39,758.21 45,408.01

Other Income 304.64 363.97  –  – 304.64 363.97

Total Revenue 36,086.86 41,625.80 3,975.99 4,146.18 40,062.85 45,771.80

RESULT
Segment Profit  (1,878.98) 32.16 2,278.56 2,343.66 399.58 2,375.82
Unallocated Income 355.88 1,059.07
Unallocated Expenses –  – –  – – –
Operating Profit –  – –  – 755.46 3,434.89
Interest Expenses –  – –  – 2,586.57 2,198.07
Interest Income –  – –  – 191.97 155.91
Provision for Taxation
Current Tax –  – –  –  – 102.47
Income Tax related to
earlier years –  – –  –  –  (77.58)
Deferred Tax –  – –  –  (508.67)  (188.84)
Profit from ordinary
activities –  – –  –  (1,130.47) 1,556.68
Other Comprehensive
Income after Tax –  – –  –  (31.04)  (106.48)
Exceptional Items –  – –  –  – –
Share of TCI from
Associates –  – –  – 10,274.58 8,919.76

Total Comprehensive
Income (TCI) after Tax  –  –  –  – 9,113.07 10,369.96

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 77,439.31 65,632.86 5,945.45 6,363.28 83,384.76 71,996.14

Unallocated Assets –  – –  – 1,59,739.65 1,51,324.73

Total Assets –  – –  – 2,43,124.41 2,23,320.87

Segment Liabilities 4,179.31 4,912.35 –  – 4,179.31 4,912.35

Unallocated Liabilities –  – –  – 60,065.09 48,285.88

Total Liabilities –  – –  – 64,244.40 53,198.23

Capital Expenditure 17,192.86 21,611.30 –  17.86 17,192.86 21,629.16

Unallocated Capital
Expenditure –  – –  – –  –

Depreciation 2,966.81 2,762.12 417.84 415.93 3,384.65 3,178.05

Unallocated Depreciation
Expenditure  –  – –  – –  –

Non-Cash expenses other
than Depreciation –  – –  – –  –
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NOTE NO. 50

Disclosure of Fair value measurements

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value of cash
and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term loans
from banks and other financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to their short term maturities
of these instruments.

Financial Instruments by category ($ in Lakhs)

Particulars
Amortised

FVTPL FVTOCI
Carrying

Fair Value
Cost Amount

As at 31-03-2020
Financial Assets
Investments - Preference Shares 2,500.00 – – 2,500.00 2,500.00
Other Investments – – 107.44 107.44 107.44
Loans and Advances 950.00 – – 950.00 950.00
Trade Receivables 5,062.68 – – 5,062.68 5,062.68
Cash and Bank Balances 639.48 – – 639.48 639.48
Other Financial Assets 1,625.47 – – 1,625.47 1,625.47

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 58,295.81 – – 58,295.81 58,295.81
Trade Payables 1,833.89 – – 1,833.89 1,833.89
Other Financial Liabilities 1,395.12 – – 1,395.12 1,395.12

As at 31-03-2019
Financial Assets
Investments - Preference Shares 2,500.00 – – 2,500.00 2,500.00
Other Investments – – 64.50 64.50 64.50
Loans and Advances 950.00 – – 950.00 950.00
Trade Receivables 6,208.91 – – 6,208.91 6,208.91
Cash and Bank Balances 368.30 – – 368.30 368.30
Other Financial Assets 1,801.58 – – 1,801.58 1,801.58

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 45,848.48 – – 45,848.48 45,848.48
Trade Payables 1,940.64 – – 1,940.64 1,940.64
Other Financial Liabilities 2,107.49 – – 2,107.49 2,107.49

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments and
investment properties by valuation technique:

Level  1 : Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level  2 : Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level  3 : Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



234

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The details of financial instruments that are measured at fair value on recurring basis are given below:
($ in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Instruments at FVTOCI
Investments in listed equity securities
As at 31-03-2020 8.29 – – 8.29
As at 31-03-2019 7.52 – – 7.52

Investment in unlisted securities
As at 31-03-2020 – – 99.14 99.14
As at 31-03-2019 – – 56.97 56.97

Financial Instruments at FVTPL
Foreign exchange forward contracts
As at 31-03-2020 (Asset) – 233.98 – 233.98
As at 31-03-2019 (Liability) – 448.18 – 448.18

Valuation techniques used to determine the fair value

The significant inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within the fair value hierarchy are given below:

Nature of Financial Instrument Valuation Technique Remarks

Investment in Listed securities / Market Value Closing Price as at reporting date in Stock
Mutual Funds Exchange

Investment in Unlisted securities Adjusted Net Assets Net Assets value as per Balance Sheet of
respective Companies as at reporting date.

Foreign exchange forward contracts Mark to Market Based on MTM valuations provided by the
Banker

Financial Guarantee Obligation Differential Interest Rate Interest rates quote have been obtained
from the Banker

NOTE NO. 51

Impact of COVID - 19:

(i) Due to outbreak of Covid-19 in India and consequent implementation of lockdown of industries during the month
of March, 2020, the market price of Cotton had fallen by 5% due to poor market demand. The Company has made
a provision for diminution in stock value of cotton to the extent of $ 218.34 Lakhs. Starting from April, 2020,
the Cotton Corporation of India (CCI) has started selling the cotton by offering huge discount due to extended
lockdown announced by Government of India and the market price of cotton had fallen further by another 10% and
there was a further loss due to mark to market value of cotton inventory of $ 242.61 Lakhs after 31-03-2020.

(ii) In view of the lock-down declared across the country by the Central / State Governments due to COVID-19
pandemic during second half of March 2020, the company's operations were adversely impacted. The operations
have since resumed in a phased manner during April / May 2020 in accordance with the guidelines issued by the
relevant regulatory authorities with regard to adhering of social distancing and following prescribed hygiene standards.
The Company continues to comply with such guidelines from time to time.

The Company has sufficient liquidity / financing arrangements for the continuity of business operations.
The lock-down due to COVID-19 is continuing with certain relaxations in FY 2020-21 and the Company is continuing
its operations with lower demand. The Company expects the demand for yarn to get back to its normal levels,
based on further relaxations that would be announced by the Central and State Governments, in the course of time.
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The Company has the following financial risks:

Categories of Risk Nature of Risk

Credit Risk Receivables

Financial Instruments and Cash deposits

Liquidity Risk Fund Management

Market Risk Foreign Currency Risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Board of Directors regularly reviews these risks and approves the risk management policies, which covers the
management of these risks:

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the customer or counterparty to the financial instruments fails
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables, treasury operations and other
operations that are in the nature of lease.

Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer.
The Company extends credit to its customers in the normal course of business by considering the factors such as
financial reliability of customers. The Company evaluates the concentration of the risk with respect to trade receivables
as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets. In case of
Corporate / Export Customer, credit risks are mitigated by way of enforceable securities. However, unsecured credits
are extended based on creditworthiness of the customers on case to case basis.

NOTE NO. 52

Financial Risk Management

The Board of Directors (BOD) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework and thus established a risk management policy to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company. Risk
Management systems are reviewed by the BOD periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. The Company through its training and management standards and procedures develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The Audit Committee oversees how
management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk
management framework. The Audit committee is assisted in the oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
reviews of the risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 based on the current circumstances and expects
no significant impact on the continuity of operations of the business on long-term basis. The Company does not
have any material risk of non-fulfilment of obligations by any party arising out of existing contracts / agreements.

The Company has exercised due care in determining its significant accounting judgements and estimates while
preparing its financial statements including internal controls over financial reporting. As per the current assessment
of the Company, there is no material impact on the carrying values of trade receivables and other financial /
non-financial assets as at the reporting date. The Company continues to closely monitor the developments in economic
conditions and assess its impact. However, the final impact may differ from the current estimates made as at the date
of approval of the financial statements for the year ended 31-03-2020 considering the prevailing uncertainties.
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($ in Lakhs)

Particulars
Due less than 46 to 91 to More than

Total45 days 90 days 180 days 180 days

As at 31-03-2020

Gross carrying amount 3,154.71 1,474.57 160.15 273.25 5,062.68

Expected Loss Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Expected Credit Losses 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Carrying amount of trade
receivables net of impairment 3,154.71 1,474.57 160.15 273.25 5,062.68

As at 31-03-2019

Gross carrying amount 4,461.06 813.22 933.31 1.32 6,208.91

Expected Loss Rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Expected Credit Losses 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Carrying amount of trade
receivables net of impairment 4,461.06 813.22 933.31 1.32 6,208.91

Financial Instruments and Cash deposits

Investments of surplus funds are made only with the approved counterparties. The Company is presently exposed to
counter party risk relating to short term and medium term deposits placed with Banks. The Company places its cash
equivalents based on the creditworthiness of the financial institutions.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risks are those risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. In the management of liquidity risk, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the company's operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

Fund Management

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping
both committed and uncommitted credit lines available. The Company has laid well defined policies and procedures
facilitated by robust information system for timely and qualitative decision making by the management including its day
to day operations.

Financial arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities: ($ in Lakhs)

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Expiring within one year

Bank Overdraft and other facilities 38,378.79 10,381.00

Term Loans 392.04 11,682.00

Expiring beyond year

Term Loans – –

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring
bankruptcy or failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company and where there is a probability of default, the
company creates a provision based on Expected Credit Loss for trade receivables under simplified approach as below:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Maturities of Financial Liabilities ($ in Lakhs)

Nature of Financial Liability < 1 Year 1 - 5 Years > 5 years Total

As at 31-03-2020

Borrowings from Banks 27,290.17 24,954.23 6,051.41 58,295.81

Trade payables 1,833.89 – – 1,833.89

Other Financial Liabilities (Incl. Interest) 1,395.12 – – 1,395.12

As at 31-03-2019

Borrowings from Banks 26,263.17 14,859.60 4,725.71 45,848.48

Trade payables 1,940.64 – – 1,940.64

Other Financial Liabilities (Incl. Interest) 2,107.49 – – 2,107.49

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company’s exposure in USD and other foreign currency denominated transactions in connection with import of
cotton, capital goods & spares, besides exports of finished goods and borrowings in foreign currency, gives rise to
exchange rate fluctuation risk. The Company has following policies to mitigate this risk:

Decisions regarding borrowing in Foreign Currency and hedging thereof, (both interest and exchange rate risk) and the
quantum of coverage is driven by the necessity to keep the cost comparable. Foreign Currency loans, imports and
exports transactions are hedged by way of forward contract after taking into consideration the anticipated Foreign
exchange inflows / outflows, timing of cash flows, tenure of the forward contract and prevailing Foreign exchange market
conditions.

Decisions regarding borrowing in Foreign Currency and hedging thereof, (both interest and exchange rate risk) and the
quantum of coverage is driven by the necessity to keep the cost comparable. Foreign Currency loans, imports and
exports transactions are hedged by way of forward contracts / packing credit in foreign currency which acts as natural
hedge against export receivable. The Company enters the above transactions, after taking into consideration the anticipated
Foreign exchange inflows/outflows, timing of cash flows, tenure of the forward contract and prevailing Foreign exchange
market conditions.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments viz. Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts exclusively for hedging
currency risks that arise from imports / exports transactions. The Company measures the risk by forecasting foreign
currency cash flows and manages its currency risks by appropriately hedging the transactions. When a forward contract
is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company finalizes the terms of those forward contracts to match
the terms of the hedged exposure i.e. receivables / payables / Firm Commitments. All identified exposures are managed
as per the policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.
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The details of foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting period is given below:

Nature of Financial Liability Foreign currency (in Lakhs) Nominal Amount ($ in Lakhs)

31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

USD / INR buy forward 52.16 12.88 3,946.51 890.66

EURO / INR buy forward – 32.97 – 2,561.12

CHF / INR buy forward – 11.20 – 777.64

JYP / INR buy forward – 10.40 – 649.14

Fair value liabilities – – (132.47) 306.79

The above forward contracts are having maturity of less than 12 months.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities /
Firm Commitments as at the end of reporting periods are given below:

As at 31-03-2020 In Millions

Type Particulars USD

Financial Assets / Firm commitments related to Financial Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 1.45
(b) Export Sale Contracts 4.30

Financial Liabilities / Firm Commitments related to Financial Liabilities
(a) Buyers Credit Loan 4.05
(b) Contracts for import of materials 1.12

Instruments for hedging the currency risk on Financial Assets
(a) PCFC Loan 4.70
(b) Bill discount - Export 0.30

Instruments for hedging the currency risk on Financial Liabilities
(a) Forward contracts for Buyers Credit Loan 4.05
(b) Forward contract for Imports 1.12

Hedged Items

Hedging
Instruments

(Forward
contracts)

As at 31-03-2019 In Millions

Type Particulars USD EURO CHF JPY

Financial Assets / Firm commitments
related to Financial Assets

(a) Trade Receivables 1.42

(b) Export Sale Contracts 3.00

Financial Liabilities / Firm Commitments
related to Financial Liabilities

(a) Contracts for import of materials 1.29 3.30 1.12 1.04

Instruments for hedging the currency
risk on Financial Assets

(a) PCFC Loan 4.41

Instruments for hedging the currency
risk on Financial Liabilities

(a) Forward contract for Imports 1.29 3.30 1.12 1.04

Hedged Items

Hedging
Instruments

(Forward
contracts)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates which exposed the company to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Company’s fixed rate borrowing are carried at amortized cost and therefore are not subject to interest rate
risk as defined in Ind AS 107 since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of the
change in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to the evolution of interest rates and credit markets for its
future refinancing, which may result in a lower or higher cost of financing, which is mainly addressed through the
management of the fixed / floating ratio of financial liabilities. The Company constantly monitors credit markets to
strategize a well-balanced maturity profile in order to reduce both the risk of refinancing and large fluctuations of its
financing cost. The Company believes that it can source funds for both short term and long term at a competitive rate
considering its strong fundamentals on its financial position.

Interest rate risk exposure

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Variable rate borrowings 58,295.81 45,848.48

Fixed rate borrowings – –

The Company does not have any interest rate swap contracts

Sensitivity on Interest rate fluctuation

Incremental Interest Cost works out to 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

1% Increase in Interest Rate 582.96 458.49

($ in Lakhs)

NOTE NO. 53

Events after the reporting period - Distribution made and proposed

Particulars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Cash Dividends on Equity Shares declared and paid
Final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2019:
$ 4/- per share (PY: $ 4/- per share) 295.05 295.05
Dividend Distribution Tax on Dividend Paid 60.65 60.06

Proposed Dividends on Equity Shares
Final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2020:
$1/- per share (PY: $ 4/- per share) 73.76 295.05

Dividend Distribution Tax on Proposed Dividend – 60.65

As per our report annexed

For N.A. JAYARAMAN & CO. For SRSV & ASSOCIATES Shri P.R. VENKETRAMA RAJA Smt. R. SUDARSANAM
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 001310S Firm Registration No. 015041S

R. PALANIAPPAN P. SANTHANAM B. GNANAGURUSAMY A. ARULPRANAVAM
Partner Partner Chief Financial Officer Secretary
Membership No. 205112 Membership No. 018697

Chennai,
24th June, 2020.
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Our Chairman Shri P.R. Venketrama Raja inagurating the TQM activities at our Mills.

A view of most modern Ring Spinning Frames with link-coners 
installed at our Mills by replacing old machineries as a part of 
modernisation programme.

Our Executives meeting the customers during their visit to 
Japan.

FOUNDER

Superior Quality Fabrics produced in our Newly established 
Fabric Unit.

A view of Jacquard Looms installed in our Newly established 
Fabric Unit.
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